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Question Answer

I wanted to check the maximum funding 

available. As the amount for 12 months 

is worth a maximum of €6 million, and 

the contract is renewable up to three 

times, is the overall maximum amount 

for this call €24m?

As pointed out in the tender specifications, paragraph 7, 

the estimated maximum amount of the Services 

commissioned under all Framework Contracts cannot 

exceed EUR six (6) million for their complete duration, 

including their renewals. This includes all costs, travel and 

incidental expenses, for the implementation of the 

Specific Contracts. The total maximum value of the 

Services commissioned under all Framework Contracts will 

not exceed, in principle, EUR 1.5 million for the initial one-

year period and each of any additional one-year period. 

However, this maximum value is only indicative and not 

mandatory.

Q1: Where may I find the equivalent 

document to “declaration or certificate 

of enrolment in one of the professional 

or trade registers in country of 

establishment” for my own country?

Q2: Is it necessary that any document or 

element of the tender to be translated 

into English?

Q1: For this document, please address to the relevant 

authority of the country in which your company is 

established.

Q2:  Please refer to paragraph 11. of the tender 

specifications, where it is stated that each tender must be 

drawn up in one of the official languages of the European 

Union, i.e. not necessarily in English.

I request you to provide us the 

following details: 

1) List of Items, Schedule of 

Requirements, Scope of Work, Terms of 

Reference, Bill of Materials required

2) Soft Copy of the Tender Document 

through email

3) Names of countries that will be 

eligible to participate in this tender

4) Information about the Tendering 

Procedure and Guidelines

5) Estimated Budget for this Purchase 

6) Any Extension of Bidding Deadline?

7) Any Addendum or Pre Bid meeting 

Minutes?

Please consult our website: 

http://ec.europa.eu/competition/calls/tenders_open.html

where you will find all relevant documents and 

information as to questions 1), 2), 4), 5), 6) and 7). 

As to question 3), companies established in a third 

country outside the European Union, which has signed the 

Agreement on Government Procurement (GPA) or has a 

special agreement with the European Union on public 

procurement, may participate.
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First, with regard to Scenario 2 the 

tender specification states on page 5 

that "The Services requested by the 

Commission under scenario 2 would 

consist of a report addressing the 

following three questions: 

1) Please provide a technical overview 

of the existing and planned 

infrastructures.

2) What further information would be 

necessary to understand the effects of 

the project on competition?

3) Please explain how you would assess 

the effects on competition (both 

positive and negative aspects) from an 

economic and technical point of view 

arising from the planned aid measure."

Could you please clarify whether (i) the 

Commission would request a report 

addressing these questions, i.e. a report 

which would state further information 

necessary and b) explain how you would 

assess the effects on competition; or (ii) 

the Commission would request a report 

addressing scenario 2 and concluding 

with an expert opinion whereas 

questions 1) to 3) can be understood as 

additional questions to be addressed in 

the tender (as indicated on p. 3). 

Second, could you please confirm that 

the tenderer should cover all areas of 

expertise, i.e. technical, economic and 

legal. In other words, practically, the 

Commission requests a tender from 

consortium of technical, economic and 

legal advisers. 

As regards scenario 2, replies to the three questions 

asked, which should not exceed five pages, have to be 

provided in addition to the description indicated on page 

3 of the tender specifications, as a part or annex of the 

technical description (which should not exceed ten pages, 

CVs and replies to the questions excluded).

The tenderer should cover all areas of expertise, i.e. 

technical, economic and legal, as indicated in the tender 

specifications.

I understand that the Contract will be 

binding on the Contractor as signatory 

of the Contract. The Contractor will 

Your understanding is correct. The contracts will be 

binding on the contractor, who will be liable for its proper 

performance, as provided in Article II.6 of the draft 
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then have the responsibility of taking 

the necessary arrangements with third 

party experts to ensure compliance with 

the Contract (including in relation to the 

no-conflict provisions).

framework contract. The contractor will then have the 

responsibility of taking the necessary arrangements with 

subcontractors or third party experts to ensure 

compliance with the contracts, including in relation to the 

no-conflict provisions. These provisions include, in 

particular, the following obligations:

As indicated in section 10.1 of the tender specifications, 

the framework contract and the specific contracts may 

not be awarded to tenderers who, during the 

procurement procedure are subject to a conflict of 

interest. In this regard, section 11 of the tender 

specifications provides that the tenders for the framework 

contract and specific contracts must comprise, among 

other documents, a declaration stating that the contractor 

is not in a conflict of interest. In addition and as provided 

in Article II.3 of the draft framework contract, any conflict 

of interest which could arise during performance of the 

contracts must be notified to the Commission in writing 

without delay. In the event of such conflict, the contractor 

shall immediately take all necessary steps to resolve it.

Finally, the selection criteria established in section 10.2 of 

the tender specifications require the tenderer to have in 

place effective and sufficient measures in order to ensure 

the avoidance of conflicts of interest. Required measures 

shall ensure that any conflicts of interest are avoided 

during the performance of the framework contract and 

the specific contracts, and also after their termination.

Also I understand that the 2 years post 

termination no-conflict clause 

contained in the previous version of this 

call for tender has been removed.

Article II.3 of the draft framework contract deals with 

conflict of interest during performance of the contract. 

According to Article II.3.1, "The Contractor shall take all 

necessary measures to prevent any situation that could 

compromise the impartial and objective performance of 

the Contract." The contractor is bound by this obligation 
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throughout the performance of the framework contract. 

There is no 2 years post termination no-conflict clause 

under this framework contract. However, in this context it 

should be mentioned that the contractor is also bound by 

the confidentiality clauses under Article II.4 of the 

framework contract. Article II.4.1 states that "The 

contractor undertakes to treat in the strictest confidence 

and not make use of or divulge to third parties any 

information or documents which are linked to 

performance of the Contract. The Contractor shall 

continue to be bound by this undertaking after 

completion of the tasks." The contractor, thus, undertakes 

to respect the confidentiality for an unlimited period of 

time although, as a general rule, this would not prevent 

him from rendering any services to third parties, provided 

that he complies with the mentioned confidentiality 

obligations.

Would the Commission consider as a 

conflict of interest with respect to the 

Framework Contract if

(i) one or more of our experts were 

currently involved in a particular matter 

relating to one of the sectors before the 

European Commission 

(ii) one or more of our experts might 

become involved in a particular matter 

relating to one of the sectors before the 

European Commission during the 

duration of the Framework Contract. 

Needless to say that we are fully aware 

that neither of our experts should ever 

be involved, whatsoever, in a particular 

matter for which we would sign a 

Specific Contract.

Conflicts of interest have to be assessed on a case-by-case 

basis. As indicated in section II.3 of the draft framework 

contract, they could arise in any situation that could 

compromise the impartial and objective performance of 

the contracts. In connection with the scenarios that you 

describe, the assessment shall be made in view of the 

services where your experts would be involved for a third 

party and those of the contracts, and the parties to which 

they refer. For example, a conflict of interest may arise in 

connection with services, which although unrelated with 

the services of the contracts, are performed for the same 

parties involved or their affiliates. Your experts are 

however not generally prohibited from continuing to work 

or becoming involved in matters connected with the 

sectors covered by the framework contract.  As 

mentioned in your e-mail, the contractor and its experts 

cannot be involved whatsoever in a particular matter for 

which a specific contract would be signed.

I would like to clarify whether, in 

Scenario 2 (p. 5), "funding from the EU 

funds (structural funds, CEF) and to seek 

a loan from EIB or any other funding 

offered by the EU bodies": CEF – relates 

to Connecting Europe Facility or Central 

European Fund?

CEF is an abbreviation for Connecting Europe Facility.
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According to the tender specifications 

(page 3), the required description of the 

understanding of the tasks and of the 

way in which the tenderer would carry 

out the work for Scenario 2 must 

include two distinct parts (in addition to 

the financial part): 

A)  a technical part, detailing the 

methodologies to be applied and 

approach which will be followed 

(including the kind of data that will be 

used and information sources), the 

project planning, the composition of the 

team and the responsible team leader 

for each scenario (including their CVs), 

as well as, as the case may be, any 

proposed solution and the structure of 

the report to be prepared, if applicable; 

AND 

B)    a reply to three questions (i) please 

provide a technical overview of the 

existing and planned infrastructures; (ii) 

what further information would be 

necessary to understand the effects of 

the project on competition?; (iii) please 

explain how you would assess the 

effects on competition (both positive 

and negative aspects) from an economic 

and technical point of view arising from 

the planned aid measure.

Except for the project planning and the 

composition of the team (+ the team 

leader and CV) which are required only 

under A), the two parts seem to overlap 

to some extent. In particular, the 

description of the methodology, the 

approach and any proposed solution 

requested under A) appear to be 

already covered by the responses to 

question (i) and (iii) under B).

Addressing the three questions under B) 

constitute altogether the Services 

The technical part shall detail methodologies to be applied 

and approach which will be followed (including the kind of 

data that will be used and information sources), the 

project planning, the composition of the team and the 

responsible team leader for each scenario (including their 

CVs), as well as, as the case may be, any proposed 

solution and the structure of the report to be prepared, if 

applicable. All these elements relate to the preparation of 

the report. They thus address issues distinct to the three 

questions asked about the substance of a specific case. 

Therefore, the replies to these questions have to be 

provided in addition to the technical part.
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requested by the Commission under 

scenario 2 (page 5 of the tender 

specifications). If not to reply to these 

questions, could you please clarify what 

Service the requested methodology and 

approach under A) should apply for?

How is legal, technical and economic 

experience defined and what type of 

projects would be eligible?

Do we use our own template for the 

listing and the description of projects 

and services provided in the past three 

years relevant to the tender?

The list and description of the projects and services 

provided in the past three years, which is requested under 

section 10.2.3 of the Tender Specifications, refer to 

project and services relevant to this tender. These 

projects and services shall consist of:

- consultancy services,

- on technical, economic and legal matters,

- regarding the telecommunications, media, IT and 

Internet, consumer electronics and related sectors.

Some examples of these services can be found in section 3 

of the Tender Specifications.

You can use your own template for the requested listing 

and description. In any event, please ensure that all the 

information requested in section 10.2.3 of the Tender 

Specifications is duly included in your submission.

1. The documentation states that the 

exclusion criteria form needs to be 

certified. What do you mean by 

this? Does a company director just 

need to sign this form? Does the 

company director need to sign this form 

in the presence of a public notary?

2. Do subcontractors need to sign the 

various tender documents or is it just 

the lead contractor? Do subcontractors 

need to submit any forms separately?

1.- The purpose of the exclusion criteria forms is to certify 

that the tenderer is not in a situation that would exclude 

him from participating in the tender. In the event that the 

tenderer is a legal person (e.g., a company), the form 

needs to be signed by an individual who is duly authorised 

under applicable law to represent the legal person for the 

purpose of issuing the declaration contained in the form 

(e.g., as the case may be, a Director). The form does not 

need however to be signed before a public notary.

2. The sub-contractor must sign the exclusion criteria 

form, which must be joined to the tender. It is the 

tenderer that signs the tender including all the forms (in 

the event of a joint tender, all members of the group 

sign). In the event that the tenderer is offered a contract, 

the sub-contractor must provide the evidence confirming 

the exclusion criteria form in the same way as the 

tenderer.
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We further understand that: 

1. only the Contractor (and not the sub-

contractors) need to submit the 

following forms: 

• Identification form 

• Legal entity form 

• Financial identification form

and 

2. both the Contractor and the sub-

contractors need to submit the 

following form: 

• Exclusion criteria form

Could you please confirm our 

understanding is correct?

Yes, we can confirm that your understanding is correct.

Could you please provide further 

clarification on the following question:

"The Tables in Annex A ("Price 

proposal") of the Specifications to 

Invitation to Tender seem to suggest 

that there must be a single day rate for 

a given Category of experts. Could you 

please confirm the understanding that 

the day rates of legal, economic and 

technical experts in a given Category 

must be identical, in other words, legal 

experts must be offered at the same 

day rate as economic and technical 

experts."

Your understanding is correct that the Tender 

Specifications foresee one single day rate for a given 

category of experts, irrespective of the field (legal, 

technical or economic).

In any event, please note that these rates work as 

maximum prices for specific assignments in the event of 

reopening of competition. 

Could you please provide further 

clarification on the following question:

Article II.2.2 (Liability) of General 

Conditions for Service Framework 

Contracts in Annex I stipulates that:

"The Contractor shall be liable for any 

loss or damage sustained by the 

Commission in performance of the 

The "total amount of the Contract" does not refer to an 

individual specific contract, but to the total value of the 

Framework Contract. 
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Contract, including in the event of 

subcontracting under Article II.6 but 

only up to three times the total amount 

of the Contract."

Could you confirm that "total amount of 

the Contract” in this Article refers to an 

individual specific contract signed by a 

Contractor under the "cascade" or the 

"reopening of competition procedure" 

and not to the total amount of the 

Framework contract?                                                                                                          

Could you also confirm that the total 

amount of liability thus limited provides 

an upper bound for compensation 

foreseen in Article II.2.3 ("The 

Contractor shall provide competition in 

the event of any action, claim or 

proceeding against the Commission by a 

third party as a result of damage caused 

by the Contractor in performance of the 

Contract.")?

Limitation of liability is included in point II.2.2 and refers 

to point II.2.2. only. It cannot be extended to point II.2.3., 

which refers to a particular type of damage.

In case of several service providers 

bidding jointly, shall the bid be 

submitted by a sole representative of 

the consortium, or can this be done by 

all of them together?

In both cases, can the requested 

financial information (which may be 

confidential) be submitted separately by 

each service provider?

If a joint offer is submitted and a legal entity for the 

consortia has not been formed, all members of the group 

have to sign the offer or one of the members that has 

been duly authorised by the other members of the group 

(authorisation, e.g. power of attorney, is to be attached to 

the offer).

The tenderer should submit one offer containing all parts 

required. An offer cannot be split and different parts sent 

by different entities for one and the same offer.

In case of a consortium (whether or not 

with a sole representative), is it possible 

for each different member to submit 

certain confidential (notably financial) 

information in a separate closed 

envelope, all of which would then be 

submitted to DG COMP jointly, together 

with the other (non-confidential) parts?

Yes, this should be possible.
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Description of statutory social 

security cover (level of the 

Member State of origin:  I 

assume that a confirmation 

letter of enrolment from the 

Belgian RSZ authorities is 

sufficient.  If not, please give 

further details of the 

information required.

Copy of the company’s 

memorandum and articles of 

association:  we can certainly 

provide you with a copy of the 

articles of association.  Please 

clarify if a copy of the 

company’s memorandum is 

needed in addition.  If so, 

please give further details.

If you are referring to the evidence of exclusion criteria d), a recent 

attestation from the competent authority of the country where the 

company is established should be submitted. We cannot say what 

are the correct documents as this differs from country to country. 

If you are not sure which authority is competent in the country of 

your company, you could check e.g. in E-certis: 

http://ec.europa.eu/markt/ecertis/searchDocument.do?clean=true

The "memorandum and articles of association" refers to the 

constitution of the company and are the documents that were 

required for the official registration of the company. This can be 

different in different countries. In some countries, articles of 

association is enough and in some both memorandum and articles 

of association are required. Please check what is required in the 

country where the company is established.

Would you also be so good to 

confirm whether you need the 

originals of all of the signed 

forms or whether 

authenticated copies will be 

sufficient please?

Please send us the originals.


